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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Good afternoon,

          3  I am Archie Spigner, Chair of the Committee on

          4  Housing and Buildings.

          5                 Today, this Committee has convened to

          6  consider Intro. No. 549, a bill that would amend the

          7  Administrative Code in relation to the inspection of

          8  high-pressure boilers.

          9                 This bill would expand the law

         10  permitting owners of high-pressure boilers to hire a

         11  private boiler inspector to conduct the required

         12  annual inspection of their high-pressure boiler.

         13                 The private boiler inspector would be

         14  qualified in accordance with the Rules of the

         15  Department of Buildings and the Rules and

         16  Regulations of the New York State Department of

         17  Labor.

         18                 Present law allows owners of a

         19  high-pressured boiler to have their boilers

         20  inspected by a duly authorized insurance

         21  representative or by a Department of Buildings

         22  inspector.

         23                 Similarly, in 1991, Local Law 62 was

         24  enacted to allow for an expansion to the types of

         25  qualified boiler inspectors who would be permitted
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          2  to inspect low-pressure boilers.

          3                 The bill before us today, Intro. No.

          4  549, was introduced due to concerns that some

          5  high-pressure boilers in the City are not being

          6  inspected regularly in accordance with the law. It

          7  is hoped that the privatization that this bill would

          8  authorize would afford owners of high-pressure

          9  boilers with greater opportunities to obtain their

         10  required inspections.

         11                 Anyone who wishes to offer testimony

         12  on this topic should sign in with the Sergeant- At-

         13  Arms, there he is.

         14                 We begin today's hearing with the

         15  Department of Buildings.  I see Commissioner

         16  Visconti and members of his staff, so, Commissioner,

         17  if you will have a seat, identify yourself, we will

         18  be pleased to hear the Administration's view on this

         19  matter before us today.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  My

         21  name is Richard Visconti.  I am the Acting Building

         22  Commissioner.  With me today is Stanley Shor, Chief

         23  of Staff.

         24                 Good morning, Chairman Spigner and

         25  members of the Housing and Buildings Committee.  My
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          2  name is Richard Visconti, and I am the Acting

          3  Commissioner of the Department of Buildings.

          4                 The Department is wholly in favor of

          5  Intro. 549. Under current law, owners have the

          6  option to have a Buildings Department inspection or

          7  contract independently for a private inspection of

          8  their high- pressure boilers.  This proposed bill

          9  would amend existing laws by requiring building

         10  owners to hire qualified individuals to inspect

         11  their high- pressure boilers once a year.  Intro.

         12  549 would greatly expand the pool of qualified

         13  inspectors authorized to perform high- pressure

         14  boiler inspections, thus ensuring that these boilers

         15  are inspected every year at times convenient to

         16  owners.

         17                 Boiler technology has improved

         18  significantly over the years.  Today's high-

         19  pressure boilers are compact, sophisticated pieces

         20  of equipment, not the huge pieces of machinery that

         21  were common earlier in the century.  Accidents

         22  involving high pressure boilers are rare.  There

         23  have been only one reported accident this decade, in

         24  that instance a welding patch on the boiler failed.

         25  Fortunately, no one was injured.  The boiler itself
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          2  functioned properly.

          3                 By increasing the number of qualified

          4  inspectors this bill would allow the Department's

          5  limited staff to spend its time auditing these

          6  inspections and inspecting new installations rather

          7  than attempting to inspect all of the high- pressure

          8  boilers in the City.

          9                 I would be happy to answer any

         10  questions, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  In light of the

         12  testimony we should proceed to a vote immediately.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I'm joined, as

         15  you may know, Commissioner, by a long time member of

         16  this Committee, Council Member Malave- Dilan from

         17  Brooklyn, and Council Member Michael Hein Nelson,

         18  also from Brooklyn.

         19                 Let me see, well, you have already

         20  stated that, let me see, well, it is generally

         21  conceded that a large number of high pressure

         22  boilers are not being inspected.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  That

         24  is correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  They're just
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          2  not being inspected, and that has not created any

          3  danger or hazard for the people in the City of New

          4  York, based on your testimony that only one accident

          5  and that was because of some collateral kind of a

          6  problem as opposed to a malfunction of the boiler

          7  itself.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Right,

          9  it was the boiler, itself, the actual part of the

         10  boiler that is heated that the metal was welded to

         11  maintain the integrity of the vessel, and that

         12  vessel failed at the weld.

         13                 I'm not comfortable with our ability

         14  presently to reach each and every high- pressure

         15  boiler in the City annually.  We are basically on a

         16  cycle now, Mr. Chairman, in which we're touching

         17  every boiler about once in three years, so I'm not

         18  comfortable.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  You get to them

         20  once in three years.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Once

         22  in three years, I'm not comfortable with that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So what

         24  universe are you talking about when you say once in

         25  three years, what does that represent in numbers?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  There

          3  is approximately 6,400 high- pressure boilers in the

          4  City of New York.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So one in three

          6  years, that is- -

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  So

          8  we're performing approximately 2,000 inspections a

          9  year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Four thousand

         11  not being inspected?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  That

         13  is correct, and I would like to see this amendment

         14  to the Code, because I believe that with the

         15  privatization of the inspections, through that

         16  program each and every high- pressure boiler would

         17  be inspected.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right, the

         19  Committee is informed that there is some segment of

         20  the insurance industry that is not, that is

         21  concerned with the safety of high- pressure boilers,

         22  and who conducts the required inspection.

         23                 In your opinion would there be any

         24  danger to authorizing additional types of qualified

         25  boiler inspectors to inspect these high- pressure
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          2  boilers?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  No, I

          4  think that the benefit will be that we will have a

          5  larger pool of inspectors.  It will enable owners to

          6  have the inspection made at a time that is

          7  convenient to them, and it will also assist us in

          8  rooting out boilers that may have been installed

          9  without benefit of permit and initial inspection.

         10  And that by having a larger pool of inspectors, we

         11  will have many more eyes and ears looking for

         12  equipment that may have been installed illegally.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Now this is a

         14  sort of self certification, although you're using it

         15   - -

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Well,

         17  we're looking at individuals who are licensed by the

         18  Department, and therefore, have something to risk.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I understand.

         20  Do you do any audit of these, currently?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  We do

         22  currently, and, well, we are doing the high-

         23  pressure inspections ourselves.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Yes, but I'm

         25  saying what about the low- pressure boilers?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  On

          3  low- pressure we are auditing and last year we

          4  actually audit 14 percent of the private inspections

          5  done by licensed master plumbers.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And what the

          7  State mandate on audits, is there one?

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Well,

          9  we, last year was actually a very good year, it was

         10  one of our best efforts in auditing.  But previous

         11  to that our auditing was in the nature of five to

         12  seven percent.  We went back to the State and ask

         13  them for a reduction to 5 percent.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  From what?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  From

         16  15 percent and they agreed to that, and that is,

         17  we're more than able to perform audits at that

         18  level.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.  How many

         20  boiler inspectors do you currently have employed for

         21  the Department of Buildings?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  We

         23  have currently nine boiler inspectors.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And they are

         25  doing the audits of low- pressure boilers.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

          3  They're doing audits of low- pressure boilers,

          4  they're also doing - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All of the so-

          6  called high pressure, the 2,000 a year.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: - -

          8  they're also doing the high- pressure boiler

          9  inspections.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Two thousand

         11  divided by nine, they're busy.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Yes,

         13  they're very busy.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Anyone member

         15  of the Committee have a question?  Okay, as it

         16  relates to an ancillary, but an essential component

         17  the flew, that takes off the smoke or whatever the

         18  waste is, exhaust, is that also inspected as a part

         19  of the boiler inspection?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Part

         21  of the boiler inspection encompasses the breaching,

         22  that is the connection from the boiler to the

         23  chimney.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Is the flew the

         25  same as chimney?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  The

          3  flew would be the chimney.  The breaching is

          4  essentially the horizontal connection from the

          5  boiler to the flew or chimney.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Flew and

          7  chimney are synonymous?

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Flew

          9  and chimney are synonymous.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.  So do

         11  you, now you, do you inspect the flew, as well?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  We do

         13  not inspect the flew.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  You do not?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  We

         16  inspect the boiler and the breaching connection.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Is that

         18  oversight or that omission potentially a problem in

         19  terms of safety or hazardous condition?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Well

         21  we will, you know, we will, in checking the

         22  breaching, see that the breaching is clear into the

         23  chimney.  We can't get into the chimney and do, you

         24  know, it's not part of the boiler inspection.  We

         25  are inspecting the piece of equipment.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And the only

          3  way that a property only gets that done is called a

          4  chimney cleaner or something.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Right,

          6  in a normal maintenance of their building,  - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  At least that's

          8  see malfunctioning and backup, but - -

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  You

         10  have to maintain your chimney, you have to maintain,

         11  you know, your - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, but that

         13  is not a hazard, by your definition?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  I mean

         15  it becomes a hazard if the chimney is not

         16  functioning.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  But that is not

         18  a condition that would deny your approval of the,

         19  you don't look for that condition.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Our

         21  inspection doesn't extend to the chimney.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  The Counsel, we

         23  were informed of the existence of a waiver between

         24  New York State Department of Labor and the City with

         25  regard to the inspection of boiler, that must be
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          2  that paper that says that you can go from 15 to 5.

          3  Okay, it was this waiver that allowed the City to

          4  proceed with the promulgation of Local Law 62 of

          5  1991 with regards to the inspection of low- pressure

          6  boilers.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Yes,

          8  we have - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Do you have a

         10  copy of that waiver?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  We

         12  have a waiver from the State Department of Labor

         13  which authorizes - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Can you provide

         15  us with a copy of this waiver?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  We

         17  would be happy to supply that to you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, when does

         19  that mean, today, tomorrow, the day after tomorrow?

         20  Because we have encountered some difficulty in

         21  getting access to it.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  We

         23  will ask the Mayor's Office to provide that to you

         24  as soon as possible.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Any member of
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          2  the Committee? Thank you, Commissioner, thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:  Thank

          5  you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right.  And

          7  Mr. Chief of Staff, again, you're name?

          8                 MR. SHOR:  Stanley Shor

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  S- H- A or S-

         10  H- O?

         11                 MR. SHOR:  S- H- O- R.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Shor.  Next

         13  will be, let me tell you who has registered to

         14  speak, those persons who have put their name on the

         15  list are Steven Perotto, John Maniscalco, Stewart

         16  O'Brien, Elyse Jaeger, William Barbato, Joe Corso,

         17  Philip Agusta, James Carberry.  So see if each of

         18  you take five minutes, we can out in reasonable

         19  time, okay?  Starting with Mr. Perotto.

         20                 MR. PEROTTO:  Good afternoon.  My

         21  name is Steven Perotto.  I am President of City

         22  Spec, Inc., a boiler inspection company that has

         23  currently inspected over 100,000 low- pressure

         24  boilers in New York City.  Thank you for the

         25  opportunity to testify this afternoon in support of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Intro. 549.

          3                 Today, by my company's best estimates

          4  there are anywhere from 6,500 to 10,000 high-

          5  pressure boilers in New York City.  DOB's records,

          6  as of January 1998, show there are approximately

          7  6,513 active high- pressure boilers in New York

          8  City.

          9                 However, this count does not include

         10  the numerous unregistered high- pressure boilers out

         11  there that could potentially double the previous

         12  number.

         13                 Current law requires that these

         14  boilers be inspected annually.  Today's high-

         15  pressure boilers can be inspected by DOB inspectors

         16  or duly authorized insurance companies.  High-

         17  pressure boilers are normally found in mixed- use

         18  and/or commercial buildings, as well as multiple

         19  dwellings.

         20                 Unfortunately, due to manpower

         21  constraints, the City's Department of Buildings can

         22  only inspect a fraction of them each year.

         23                 Fortunately, for all of us who live

         24  and work in New York City, we have not experienced a

         25  devastating high- pressure boiler explosion in the
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          2  last decade.

          3                 Passage of today's legislation, will

          4  go a long way toward ensuring we don't experience

          5  any in the future.

          6                 Before I go any further, let me take

          7  a moment other provide you with a little background

          8  on how high- pressure boilers work and what happens

          9  when they don't.

         10                 Whether they be powered by natural

         11  gas or heating oil, high- pressure boilers are

         12  located in thousands of buildings, industrial,

         13  commercial and residential in New York City.

         14                 The main function of these boilers is

         15  to convert water into steam.  When water is

         16  converted to steam, it has an expansion rate of

         17  sixteen hundred times its original volume.  That

         18  steam pressure is then used to power heavy

         19  industrial machinery, such as could be found in

         20  local dry cleaning establishments, hotels, and even

         21  hospitals.

         22                 Boilers range in BTU size and/or the

         23  amount of steam pressure they produce.  A high-

         24  pressure boiler is defined as one that produces more

         25  than 15 pounds per square inch of pressure or psi.
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          2                 Hotels might have a boiler the size

          3  of an average automobile, and produce up to 150

          4  pounds of pressure per square inch, whereas a large

          5  hospital may have a boiler in its basement the size

          6  of a large truck, that is rated up to 250 pounds

          7  psi.  It may not sound like a lot at first, but

          8  these levels of pressure, when not controlled, can

          9  be dangerous.

         10                 Now I'm not an engineer, so it is

         11  difficult for me to equate figures in pounds per

         12  square inch, to anything you and I might understand.

         13    However, one of the East Coast's major high

         14  pressure boiler manufacturers explained it to me

         15  this way.  If a boiler rated for 100 psi, measuring

         16  6 feet by 10 feet and weighing upwards of 15,000

         17  pounds, had its safety features fail and it

         18  exploded, the force of the explosion would shoot the

         19  boiler three miles high in the sky.  Think of the

         20  damage that could do to a New York City apartment

         21  building.

         22                 As I stated earlier, Commissioner

         23  Visconti and his predecessor, Commissioner Miele

         24  were hamstrung by a shortage of inspectors.  This

         25  has resulted in a fraction of this City's high
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          2  pressure boilers being inspected.

          3                 Having heard the Commissioner's

          4  testimony, it is probably obvious that by now that

          5  these inspections need to be done, one way or the

          6  other.  I think Intro. 549 is a logical step toward

          7  achieving this goal, and feel this legislation does

          8  not set the standard for those who would be

          9  qualified to conduct inspections, rather it leaves

         10  it up to the State Commissioner of Labor and the

         11  Department of Buildings, the two most qualified

         12  bodies to determine licensing requirements.  The

         13  bill would also ensure that inspectors get done, and

         14  by extension that the City for Inspections and

         15  Registrations be collected on a more regular and a

         16  more exhaustive basis.

         17                 To sum up, this is a good bill, and I

         18  cannot imagine many organizations or constituencies

         19  being opposed to this legislation.  As a business

         20  owner, as a landlord, or as a renter, I firmly

         21  believe that if I had a high- pressure boiler in my

         22  basement, I would want to get it inspected,

         23  regardless of the City's nominal inspection fee.

         24                 Thank you for allowing me to testify

         25  this afternoon. I would be willing to answer any
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          2  questions you may have at this time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And you run an

          4  inspection company?

          5                 MR. PEROTTO:  Yes, Sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  What do you

          7  charge for inspecting a high, you don't do, you do

          8  low- pressure boilers now?

          9                 MR. PEROTTO:  That is correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  What do you

         11  charge for it?

         12                 MR. PEROTTO:  For a low- pressure

         13  inspection?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Yes.

         15                 MR. PEROTTO:  Our fees range anywhere

         16  from $70 to approximately $100 per year, depending

         17  on the size of the equipment.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So the cost is

         19  not prohibited?

         20                 MR. PEROTTO:  That is correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.  High-

         22  pressure boiler, the size of a truck, the

         23  Commissioner said they are very small and compact.

         24                 MR. PEROTTO:  There are some that are

         25  very small and compact, and there are some that are
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          2  large.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  We're talking

          4  about high pressure, are you mainly in large

          5  buildings, large buildings, large institutions,

          6  right?

          7                 MR. PEROTTO:  That's correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Not one- and

          9  two- and three family homes?

         10                 MR. PEROTTO:  We're not talking about

         11  one- and two- and three- family homes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.  Thank

         13  you, Mr. Perotto.

         14                 MR. PEROTTO:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Could we have a

         16  copy of your testimony, please?

         17                 MR. PEROTTO:  Yes, Sir.  I will get

         18  it submitted this afternoon.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  John

         20  Maniscalco, New York Heating Oil Association.

         21                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Good afternoon.  My

         22  name is John Maniscalco, and I am the Executive

         23  Vice- President of the New York Oil Heating

         24  Association, a trade association established in

         25  1939, that represents the oil heating industry
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          2  throughout the five boroughs of New York City.  I

          3  thank you for this opportunity to testify this

          4  afternoon in support of Intro. 549.

          5                 The previous witnesses have done an

          6  excellent job laying out for you the many safety

          7  risks this bill will help to improve.  Suffice it to

          8  say, our membership concurs with the previous

          9  witnesses and their assessment of high- pressure

         10  boilers in New York City, they are potentially

         11  dangerous and should be inspected on a regular

         12  basis.

         13                 I would like to restrict my comments

         14  today to the question of who should be allowed to

         15  inspect high- pressure boilers should this

         16  legislation pass.

         17                 As I understand it, the current

         18  legislation does not stipulate who should conduct

         19  high- pressure boiler inspections. Rather, the

         20  specific licensing requirements for those who would

         21  be permitted to conduct inspections would be worked

         22  out between New York City and New York State at a

         23  later date.

         24                 I would respectfully recommend to the

         25  Committee, that it allow licensed professionals who
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          2  are currently permitted to install high- pressure

          3  boilers to inspect them as well.  Logic dictates

          4  that if one is qualified to install a high- pressure

          5  boiler, one would presumably have the expertise to

          6  also inspect a high- pressure boiler.

          7                 Currently, New York City Class A and

          8  B Oil Burning Equipment Installers are among those

          9  permitted to install high pressure boilers.  These

         10  license holders should be given the opportunity to

         11  inspect them as well.

         12                 Prospective New York City Class A and

         13  B oil burner installers are required to successfully

         14  complete four- year and three- year apprenticeships,

         15  respectively, under the direct supervision of a

         16  licensed oil burning equipment installers, as well

         17  as pass both written and practical exams in order to

         18  qualify for their licenses.

         19                 The installation of, and maintenance

         20  procedures for, high- pressure boilers are

         21  thoroughly covered throughout the apprenticeship.

         22  There is no doubt in my mind that holders of these

         23  licenses are equipped to handle high- pressure

         24  boiler inspections.

         25                 By passing this legislation today and
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          2  by working with the State to allow these licensed

          3  individuals who installation high- pressure boilers

          4  to inspect them as well, the City Council and the

          5  State can rest assured that New York City's high-

          6  pressure boilers are being inspected and being

          7  inspected and being inspected by qualified

          8  professionals.

          9                 Mr. Chair of this Committee, thank

         10  you for allowing me to testify this afternoon, and I

         11  would be willing to answer any questions you may

         12  have at this time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Will you leave

         14  us a copy of your testimony, Sir?

         15                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Yes, I will.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Any member of

         17  the Committee with a question?  Thank you, Mr.

         18  Maniscalco.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, what

         20  exactly do you do? I'm sorry I'm came in late.

         21                 MR. MANISCALCO:  I represent the Home

         22  Heating Oil Industry throughout the boroughs of New

         23  York City, I'm representing Oil Distribution

         24  Companies and contractors who install heating

         25  equipment.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And it's the

          3  position of the industry that these inspections can

          4  be done other than by the City?

          5                 MR. MANISCALCO: Excuse me?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That these

          7  inspections of these high- pressure boilers, which,

          8  of course, we understand is a very dangerous

          9  instrumentality, if not inspected properly and

         10  maintained properly, is a potential for a very, for

         11  danger if it is not done.  So this is a very

         12  important type of inspection, and the people have to

         13  have sufficient expertise.  Are you convinced that

         14  we have enough people out there with sufficient

         15  expertise who can do this type of inspection and do

         16  it in a safe and knowledgeable way?

         17                 MR. MANISCALCO:  There is no doubt in

         18  my mind, Sir, if you have the hands- on experience

         19  of installing this equipment, you certainly have the

         20  expertise to inspect it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Of course, it

         22  is your interest to make sure that these are kept in

         23  good working order?

         24                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Exactly, of course

         25  it is.  And just of myself, the companies that I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  represent and also, naturally, the consuming public.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Are many of

          4  these boilers under warranty, and how long does the

          5  warranty last when they sell them?  Your industry

          6  sells these boilers, as well?

          7                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Well, they install

          8  the boilers, usually a guarantee on labor and

          9  materials stretches anywhere, normally about one

         10  year on a guarantee.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Any contracts,

         12  extended warranties on these boilers?

         13                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Many manufacturers

         14  of the boilers themselves have extended warranties,

         15  but when you average that over a ten- year period it

         16  gets down into percentages and it really never

         17  triggers anything.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And how often

         19  should these boilers be inspected?

         20                 MR. MANISCALCO:  I think once a year.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What kind of

         22  maintenance do they need?

         23                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Well, they need oil

         24  heat industry rule of thumb is once a year, it is

         25  inspected usually during the warmer months, and the
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          2  unit is looked at as well as the chimney.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That's a full

          4  inspection, what about maintenance, does it require

          5  more than monthly maintenance?

          6                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Monthly maintenance?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes.

          8                 MR. MANISCALCO:  No, Sir, not monthly

          9  maintenance.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And this

         11  includes not only the boilers, but the burners as

         12  well?

         13                 MR. MANISCALCO:  That's correct Sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Which is more

         15  difficult to inspect and which requires more

         16  attention the burner or the boiler?

         17                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Well the burner

         18  itself is more mechanical, more expertise, the

         19  boiler is more or less a set casting of iron that

         20  has to be properly cleaned and the welding on that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So when you're

         22  talking about the inspection, you're talking about

         23  inspecting both the boiler and the burner.

         24                 MR. MANISCALCO:  And controls, Sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And all of the
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          2  controls and the pipes leading to it and from it.

          3                 MR. MANISCALCO:  The smoke pipe

          4  leading from the breaching to the chimney, yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 MR. MANISCALCO:  You're welcome.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. Maniscalco,

          9  your oil burner, right?

         10                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Your oil, so

         12  you provide the fuel of the oil burner?

         13                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Yes, some companies

         14  do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Oh, they're

         16  both.  Now are there systems that use both gas and

         17  oil?

         18                 MR. MANISCALCO:  Oh, sure, it was

         19  referred to as dual fuel type systems.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, thank you

         21  very much. Okay, Stewart, I think I can make this

         22  out, I think this says, Stewart O'Brien, okay, tough

         23  name.  Mr. O'Brien, if you will identify yourself

         24  and who you represent, we will be happy to hear you?

         25                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Hi, my name is Stewart
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          2  O'Brien. Chairman Spigner and members of the

          3  Committee, thank you for the opportunity to present

          4  the views of the Plumbing Foundation of the City of

          5  New York on Intro. 549, the Plumbing Foundation is

          6  who I represent.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Welcome,

          8  welcome, always glad to have you with us.

          9                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Nice to be back.  As

         10  most of you know, the Plumbing Foundation is a non-

         11  profit entity whose mission is to ensure compliance

         12  with the Health and Safety Codes, and otherwise

         13  assure the safe plumbing and heating practices.  Our

         14  comments are very brief, about two minutes.

         15                 The State Labor Law and Regulations

         16  issued by the State Labor Commissioner require the

         17  annual inspection of boilers. We support Intro. 549

         18  in that it would expand the pool of individuals who

         19  can perform mandated annual high- pressure boiler

         20  inspection in the City of New York from only

         21  insurance company employees and City employees to

         22  all individuals qualified by the State Commissioner

         23  of Labor and the City Building Commissioner.  We

         24  supported the same expansion of qualified personnel

         25  in Local Law 62 of 1991, which authorized persons
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          2  qualified to the satisfaction of the State Labor

          3  Commissioner and the City Building Commissioner to

          4  perform low- pressure boiler inspections.  At that

          5  time the State Labor Commissioner and the City

          6  Building Commissioner agreed that licensed master

          7  plumbers, among other licensees, were qualified to

          8  perform low- pressure boiler inspections.

          9                 Regarding Intro. 549, we have a

         10  significant concern. It is the same concern that was

         11  expressed by members of this very Committee in 1991

         12  when the City sought to get out of the low pressure

         13  boiler inspection business pursuant to Local Law 62

         14  of 1991, that is, the adequacy of the number of

         15  individuals who would be given permission to perform

         16  the inspections.

         17                 Presently, customers must have their

         18  high- pressure boilers inspected by a City inspector

         19  or an insurance company.  The fee for a City

         20  employee inspection is mandated by law at $65.

         21  Accordingly,  the market price for an inspection is

         22  roughly the same.  If Intro. 549 is passed we

         23  believe the City will no longer provide inspectors

         24  to do these inspections, it's no longer mandated

         25  that they do these inspections, so the price would
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          2  be established in the free market.  That price will

          3  be kept reasonable as long as there are sufficient

          4  number of entities who would be qualified by the

          5  State Labor Commissioner and the City Buildings

          6  Commissioner to do the inspections.

          7                 The State Labor Commissioner has

          8  already determined that New York City master

          9  licensed plumbers, along with licensed high-

         10  pressure boiler operators and licensed oil burner

         11  installers, are qualified to perform high- pressure

         12  boiler inspections.  I believe, Chairman Spigner,

         13  that is the waiver document you were talking about

         14  that I remember seeing in 1992, and I remember it

         15  was being, it was read to me last week, that the

         16  State Labor Commissioner has already said licensed

         17  plumbers in the City of New York, licensed oil

         18  burner installers, and licensed high- pressure

         19  boiler inspectors are already qualified in his

         20  opinion or her opinion to do these inspections.  I

         21  also understand from the Commission of the Buildings

         22  that he also believes that these same three

         23  licensees are also qualified to do the inspections

         24  on high pressure boilers.  The safety devices on

         25  low- pressure and high pressure boilers are
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          2  virtually the same.  Accordingly, the only issue,

          3  that I think we have before us is whether the

          4  licensees should be specifically named in the

          5  legislation, or be included only by a Rule and

          6  Regulation.  And as you know, a Rule and Regulation

          7  is under the exclusive control of the Commissioner

          8  of Buildings and can be changed at any time, unless

          9  if you put it in the legislation, it would be once

         10  and for all and it couldn't be changed without your

         11  authorization.

         12                 Intro. 549 specifically lists

         13  employees of "duly authorized insurance companies"

         14  as being qualified to perform high pressure boiler

         15  inspections.  We respectfully request that Intro.

         16  549 be amended to specifically include the

         17  licensees, plumbers, boiler operators, and oil

         18  burner installers, that the State Commissioner of

         19  Labor and the City Buildings Commissioner agree are

         20  qualified to perform these inspections.  Adding the

         21  specific licensees to the legislation would be

         22  consistent with many other provisions of the Code,

         23  which name the exact licensee who is qualified to do

         24  a particular type of inspection, and in my remarks I

         25  have cited some sections in the Administrative Code
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          2  that specifically names those people.

          3                 Therefore, I recommend approval of

          4  the bill with that noted amendment.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It sounds

          7  reasonable to me, Mr. O'Brien.  I want to thank you

          8  for your testimony.

          9                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  A question from

         11  Council Member Michels.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, it does

         13  seem reasonable, however, what I would like to, is

         14  there some fear on your part that without this

         15  amendment that the Buildings Commissioner may allow

         16  other people, other than plumbers, boiler

         17  inspectors, boiler operators, burner installers, and

         18  so on, to inspect these boilers?

         19                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Well, I'm not sure

         20  which way it goes. It seems to me that if you're a

         21  Commissioner, and as the Labor Commissioner says, I

         22  agree these people can do it.  And if I'm the City

         23  Buildings Commissioner, I agree these people can do

         24  it, then you should put that in the legislation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  There must

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  be some reason why it should be in there?  What if

          3  someone else, they find another type of an engineer

          4  that is qualified and they want to allow them to do

          5  it, than they're not allowed to do it?

          6                 MR. O'BRIEN:  No, absolutely, no,

          7  what I'm suggesting is, in the legislation it says,

          8  right now the legislation that you have before you,

          9  it says duly authorized insurance company employees

         10  and other people designated by the Buildings

         11  Commissioner.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Right.

         13                 MR. O'BRIEN:  And what I'm suggesting

         14  is keep duly authorized insurance companies, add the

         15  licensed plumber, add the licensed oil burner

         16  installer, add the licensed high- pressure boiler

         17  operator, and then keep, and other people designated

         18  by the Commissioner of Buildings, so he has the

         19  flexibility to add people, if he chooses to do so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Now are we

         21  confident that the insurance companies are allowing

         22  people to inspect to know what they're doing?

         23                 MR. O'BRIEN:  That's - -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Because all

         25  these other people you numerate, all seem to have
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          2  some sort of a qualification, they have been in the

          3  business, and would they hire somebody other than a

          4  plumber, a boiler operator, or and oil burner

          5  installer to do this inspection?

          6                 MR. O'BRIEN:  It says duly authorized

          7  insurance companies, those people who are approved,

          8  I believe, by the State to do it.  So they have

          9  procedures they go through, it is not any insurance

         10  company.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But

         12  insurance companies don't inspect, employees of

         13  insurance companies.

         14                 MR. O'BRIEN:  That's right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Are we

         16  confident that the people they, I understand that

         17  they don't want to pay out in claims, it's obviously

         18  a motivated, but do we have confidence that the

         19  people that they give the job to do the inspection

         20  with and maybe at that time have the expertise to

         21  actually do the inspection?

         22                 MR. O'BRIEN:  I think that might be

         23  more appropriately addressed to the insurance

         24  industry, and I'm the plumbing industry.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You don't
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          2  question that?

          3                 MR. O'BRIEN:  I don't question that,

          4  they have been doing it for a while and they seem to

          5  do a pretty good job. Remember, we're just talking

          6  about expanding this to high- pressure, they have a

          7  long history of doing it, low- pressure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  High-

          9  pressure is, my way of thinking, is more dangerous

         10  than low- pressure.

         11                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Yes, it is, but they

         12  have always been authorized to do it.  This doesn't

         13  add them, they, well, it would authorize them to do

         14  the high- pressure.  They have been doing the low-

         15  pressure for a long, long time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I'm just

         17  trying to be a little more careful when it comes to

         18  high- pressure.

         19                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Well I think when you

         20  have a track record of having the licensees doing it

         21  for the low- pressure, and the duly authorized

         22  insurance companies, and as Commissioner Visconti

         23  said, they spot ordered them and it doesn't seem to

         24  be a problem.  And especially they can take that

         25  authorization away from the insurance companies, and
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          2  you certainly could take the licenses away, if any

          3  of these people who are New York City licenses, and

          4  I think that provides the controls, given the

          5  history that there hasn't been that much of a

          6  problem and the ability of the City to pull the

          7  authority of the licensees, I think that is

          8  efficient.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  We don't

         10  want there to be any sort of a problem.

         11                 MR. O'BRIEN:  No, we don't, that we

         12  don't.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But does the

         14  insurance companies, to your knowledge, hire people

         15  to do these inspections who have the expertise, who

         16  are plumbers, who are boiler operators or oil burner

         17  installers, and so on?

         18                 MR. O'BRIEN:  I don't know the exact

         19  qualifications but - -

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  They're not

         21  taking a salesman off of the street and saying here

         22  you go, and inspect a high- pressure boiler?

         23                 MR. O'BRIEN:  No, they don't.  They

         24  have training programs for those people.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  They are
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          2  trained to your knowledge?

          3                 MR. O'BRIEN:  To my knowledge, from

          4  my experience with the City, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You should

          6  understand, I'm not making any accusations, it's

          7  just my way of listening to testimony from you, and

          8  then is a sense be a devil's advocate.

          9                 MR. O'BRIEN:  I have my opinion, but

         10  it probably would be more appropriate to direct it

         11  to the insurance companies and their employees.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, now you

         16  say the State Regs on that waiver that we talked

         17  about specifies these various categories?

         18                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  You believe or?

         20                 MR. O'BRIEN:  I remember reading it

         21  in 1992 when I was still with the City, and my

         22  conversation with the Buildings Department last

         23  week, they read me the waiver, and they told me it

         24  applied not only to low- pressure inspectors, but

         25  also to high pressure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And in line

          3  with your language, that's what the agreement of the

          4  State and DOB on any of these titles?

          5                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Right, the State

          6  authorized in 1992, I guess, they said, the State

          7  said, we believe plumbers, oil burner installers and

          8  high- pressure boiler operators can do both low

          9  pressure and high- pressure.  We had a meeting with

         10  Commissioner Visconti, last week, when he verbally

         11  told us and he confirmed to me this morning, that he

         12  also agrees that those three licensees are qualified

         13  to do the high- pressure boiler inspections, as

         14  well.

         15                 I, frankly, did not hear him say that

         16  today.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I understand,

         18  but that is according to your testimony, your

         19  language is going to require an agreement with the

         20  State Labor Commissioner and the City Building

         21  Commissioner, not one, either or, but both?

         22                 MR. O'BRIEN:  I believe the State

         23  Labor Commissioner has already done it, if you get

         24  that piece of paper you will see that the State

         25  Labor Commissioner has already said that those three
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          2  licensees can do the inspections for high- pressure

          3  boilers.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you, Sir.

          5    Elyse Jaeger, followed by William Barbato, Joe

          6  Corso, Phil Agusta, and the last, but not least,

          7  James Carberry.

          8                 Identify yourself, please?

          9                 MS. JAEGER:  My name is Elyse Jaeger.

         10    I'm the Executive Director for the Master Plumbers

         11  Council of the City of New York.  I have with me

         12  Anthony Kiazzo (phonetic), he is our President right

         13  now.

         14                 Chairman Spigner and members of the

         15  Committee, thank you for the opportunity to present

         16  the view of the Master Plumbers Council on Intro.

         17  549.  Our comments are very brief.

         18                 Based on the effectiveness of Local

         19  Law 62 of 1991, which approved low- pressure boiler

         20  inspections to be done by licensed master plumbers

         21  and licensed oil burner installers, we believe that

         22  the best choice is to approve Intro. 549.  The

         23  current mandate by New York State requiring that all

         24  high- pressure boilers be annually inspected has not

         25  occurred, and I emphasized not occurred, due to a
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          2  public budget that funds few inspectors for the

          3  required boiler inspections.

          4                 Our priority, which I am sure, is the

          5  City's priority, is to protect the health, safety

          6  and welfare of its citizens.  Both residents and

          7  visitors to this City should feel comfortable when

          8  they enter business or residence where a high

          9  pressure boiler exists and that that boiler meets

         10  certain safety requirements.  This includes the

         11  routine inspection of all high pressure boilers.  We

         12  know, at this time that mandated inspections are not

         13  occurring.

         14                 Local Law 62 of 1991, provides for

         15  routine annual inspections of low- pressure boilers

         16  by licensed master plumbers and licensed fuel oil

         17  installers.  We all know that because of these

         18  inspections, the City's safety record has improved

         19  over time.  We also know that before licensed

         20  plumbers and fuel oil installers were authorized to

         21  make these inspections, the safety record was not as

         22  good.  Our track record speaks for itself.

         23                 It is now time to provide for the

         24  inspection of all high- pressure boilers in New York

         25  City by licensed master plumbers and licensed oil

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  burner installers.  Our professional reputations are

          3  on the line and we feel strongly that passing Intro.

          4  549 will make a difference in safety and health for

          5  New York City citizens. We install these boilers, we

          6  are licensed and experienced and we know what we are

          7  doing.

          8                 The passing of this legislation will

          9  help ensure the identification of high- pressure

         10  boilers that were installed illegally and in an

         11  unsafe manner.  The market will continue to be

         12  competitive, based on the track record that is

         13  occurring, after the passage of Local Law 62 of

         14  1991.

         15                 We urge you to pass this legislation

         16  at this time to afford the citizens of this City

         17  their right to live and work in a safe environment.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Sir, do you

         19  care to add to this?

         20                 MR. KIAZZO:  Not at this time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Not at this

         22  time?

         23                 MR. KIAZZO:  If you have any

         24  questions, we will answer.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank both of
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          2  you very much for your time and testimony.

          3                 MR. KIAZZO:  Thank you.

          4                 MS. JAEGER:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:   William

          6  Barbato.  Identify yourself, Sir, and proceed with

          7  your testimony?

          8                 MR. BARBATO:  Yes, Sir.  Ladies and

          9  gentlemen, my name is William Barbato.  I'm employed

         10  by the Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and

         11  Insurance Company.  Since its inception in 1866, The

         12  Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and Insurance

         13  Company has led the industry in the promotion of

         14  boiler safety.  As this country's oldest and largest

         15  boiler and machinery insurance company, we were

         16  founded on the principles of inspection as a means

         17  to assure the proper and safe operation of boilers

         18  and pressure vessel equipment, thus allowing us to

         19  assume the financial risk through a policy of

         20  insurance.  Today, we continue to embrace these

         21  founding principles and we currently employ this

         22  nation's largest work force of National Board

         23  Commission Boiler and Pressure Vessel Inspectors. In

         24  my capacity of Manager, Jurisdictional Affairs, I

         25  work with state and local jurisdictions in support
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          2  of legislation and regulations that assure proper

          3  construction, repair and inspection of boilers and

          4  unfired pressure vessels.

          5                 I'm in opposition of Intro. No. 549

          6  for two reasons:

          7                 First, I believe that the specific

          8  language of Intro. 549 is unclear.  The term

          9  commissioner at the end of the first sentence can be

         10  interpreted it to mean either the Commissioner of

         11  Labor of the State of New York or another

         12  Commissioner.  If the intent is another

         13  Commissioner, then the individuals that may conduct

         14  boiler inspections under Local Law 62 of 1991, could

         15  possibly be broadened beyond the requirements of

         16  Subdivision 8, Section 204 of the State of New York

         17  Labor Law.

         18                 I believe the term Commissioner at

         19  the end of the first sentence should be further

         20  qualified so as to indicate the State of New York

         21  Commissioner of Labor.  This will ensure that Intro.

         22  549 complies with the requirements of Section 204 of

         23  the State of New York Labor Law, with this change I

         24  would support Intro. 549.

         25                 Secondly, I oppose what I believe to
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          2  be the intent of Intro. 549, that is, if the intent

          3  is to allow an expansion of those individuals

          4  permitted to perform high- pressure boiler

          5  inspections in the City of New York, then I oppose

          6  Intro. 549 on the ground of potentially diminishing

          7  public safety.

          8                 Under the current law, inspectors of

          9  high- pressure boilers must be employed by either

         10  the City of New York or a duly authorized insurance

         11  company.  The common element that unites both of

         12  these employment requirements is a vested interest

         13  in the outcome of the inspection, not merely a

         14  commercial interest in receiving an inspection fee.

         15  To allow boiler and pressure vessel inspections to

         16  be performed by persons who do not have a vested

         17  interest in the equipment they inspect, potentially

         18  places the public safety at risk.

         19                 Furthermore, insurance companies are

         20  highly regulated for solvency, which gives the

         21  public added assurance that these firms have the

         22  financial stability to stand behind the quality of

         23  their inspections.  This oversight does not

         24  necessarily apply to inspectors employed by other

         25  types of organizations.  An additional public
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          2  regulatory layer may be needed to monitor the

          3  financial health of contract inspectors.

          4                 Insurance companies that provide

          5  boiler inspections employ inspectors that hold

          6  commissions issued by The National Board of Boiler

          7  and Pressure Vessel Inspectors.  To hold such a

          8  commission, an individual must meet certain

          9  experience requirements, pass a rigorous written

         10  exam and meet ongoing training requirements.  The

         11  National Board Commission is an insurance that the

         12  individual is knowledgeable in the aspects of boiler

         13  inspection, and the National Boiler Commission

         14  Program is recognized throughout the world as the

         15  standard for boiler inspector licensing.  Inspectors

         16  that do not hold National Board Commissions may be

         17  inadequately trained or insufficiently experienced

         18  to recognize potential causes of boiler failures.

         19                 The citizens of New York City do not

         20  need additional boiler inspectors whose primary

         21  interest is collecting an inspection fee.  Allowing

         22  a change in motive from loss prevention and public

         23  safety to fee collection may place the public safety

         24  at risk.  The Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and

         25  Insurance Company stands firmly for inspection in
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          2  the public interest by entities with a vested

          3  interest in the boilers they inspect.

          4                 Thank you, and if I could answer any

          5  questions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So you don't

          7  feel licensed plumbers are qualified to conduct this

          8  very serious responsibility of certifying to the

          9  safety of boilers, that is the gist of your

         10  testimony?

         11                 MR. BARBATO:  That is correct.  The

         12  National Board Commission, the training that we have

         13  goes into the physical aspects of potential failure

         14  mechanisms of boilers.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well what about

         16  low- pressure boilers that they have had experience

         17  with, do you insure low pressure boilers as well?

         18                 MR. BARBATO:  Yes, Sir, we do.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  They're now

         20  being inspected by licensed plumber?

         21                 MR. BARBATO:  No, Sir, the boilers

         22  that we inspect, we insure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, so you

         24  will insure anything, but you don't inspect, that

         25  makes sense.
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          2                 MR. BARBATO:  That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, any

          4  member of the Committee?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I'm Council

          6  Member Michels. I find your comments very

          7  interesting, obviously, and of course, I share your

          8  sympathy of the people who do the inspections of

          9  this very dangerous instrumentality were not

         10  properly inspected, maintained and used, must have

         11  the expertise to recognize potential dangers, and I

         12  imagine there are some potential dangers.  What

         13  could happen if you don't get somebody who is a

         14  qualified inspector?

         15                 MR. BARBATO:  Well, the failure

         16  mechanisms of boilers are very widely.  When a

         17  boiler does fail and releases the energy that is

         18  built inside it, like previous testimony said, the

         19  expansion rate from water to steam is approximately

         20  1,600 times. So for one gallon of water you're going

         21  to end up with essentially 1,600 gallons in volume

         22  of steam.  So that potential energy is tremendous,

         23  and as someone said, it could do devastation to the

         24  building that it is in.

         25                 National Board Commission inspectors
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          2  have the experience and training to recognize

          3  potential failure modes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Now you say,

          5  in your statement, that the only people who should

          6  be allowed to do this type of inspections are those

          7  who have been deemed to be qualified by the National

          8  Board of Boiler and Pressure Vessel inspector; is

          9  that correct?

         10                 MR. BARBATO:  That is correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So they have

         12  certain standards by which they measure anyone who

         13  is qualified.  Could someone else apply those same

         14  standards as the National Board and then be

         15  qualified, or do they have to go before the National

         16  Board?

         17                 MR. BARBATO:  No, Sir, I believe the

         18  State of New York's Commissioning process for boiler

         19  inspectors commissioned by the State of New York

         20  does allow individuals that pass essentially the

         21  same requirements and examination to be commissioned

         22  by the State of New York without holding a National

         23  Board Commission.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And how

         25  would you estimate the risk of not going along with
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          2  this type of testimony or this type of suggestion of

          3  your's, in other words, you would write into the law

          4  that the only ones who are qualified to do this type

          5  of high- pressure boiler inspections are those who

          6  have held commissions issued by the National Board

          7  or other Commissions, which use the same type of

          8  standard or qualifications?

          9                 MR. BARBATO:  Yes, Sir.  I believe in

         10  my statement I did say in the beginning that if

         11  Intro. 549 is clarified that the term Commissioner

         12  at the end of sentence 1 is clearly stated to be the

         13  Commissioner of the State of New York, the

         14  Department of Labor, then those inspectors would be

         15  required to comply with the State law.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Let me get

         17  this straight, all right, because I understand that

         18  was your only objection at the beginning of your

         19  statement, that they define the word Commissioner,

         20  and then you said you wouldn't have any objection to

         21  549.

         22                 MR. BARBATO:  That is correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And then

         24  later on in your statement you say that the only

         25  people who should be allowed under this statute to
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          2  do these inspections are those who have commissions

          3  issued by the National Board Boiler and Pressure

          4  Vessel inspectors. So even though we don't have that

          5  provision in this law, you would still support the

          6  law, but change the other?

          7                 MR. BARBATO:  The State of New York

          8  Commissioning process is acceptable to my company,

          9  yes.  It allows either the National Board Commission

         10  or a New York State Commission, which is essentially

         11  the same thing, although it does not have - -

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I see.  So

         13  what you're saying, essentially, is that if we

         14  specifically make reference that they must pass the

         15  criteria, the standards of the Commissioner of Labor

         16  of the State of New York, that that standard is

         17  commissioned by the National Board of Boiler and

         18  Pressure Vessels inspectors, and they don't permit

         19  anyone else to do this inspection?

         20                 MR. BARBATO:  That is correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Okay, thank

         22  you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Sir, do you

         24  provide inspection services to any boilers other

         25  than those insured by your company?
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          2                 MR. BARBATO:  No, Sir, we do not.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Even that,

          4  okay.  Do you inspect all of your insured boilers

          5  annually?

          6                 MR. BARBATO:  Yes, Sir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.  All

          8  right, thank you. Mr. Corso.

          9                 MR. CORSO:  Mr. Chairman, members of

         10  the Committee, my name is Joe Corso.  I represent

         11  the Allied Building Inspectors and I represent high-

         12  pressure boiler inspectors in the City.

         13                 I actually had a testimony written

         14  up, but after listening to the testimony here, I

         15  mean, it is just a disgrace that low- pressure

         16  boilers can be put in the same sentence with high

         17  pressure boilers.  It is like asking a person who

         18  built a one family house in Long Island to build a

         19  skyscraper.  What an operating engineer goes through

         20  to be qualified on a high- pressure boiler it's

         21  years and years of experience.  We are talking here

         22  about, well, low- pressure, high- pressure, low-

         23  pressure, well, they said it is okay for him to

         24  inspect low- pressure, so he can inspect high-

         25  pressure.
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          2                 The State of New York in order to get

          3  a certificate of competency, you have to be a boiler

          4  maker.  The insurance companies use people who are

          5  boiler makers, who have a State certificate of

          6  competency.  Now we're going with New York City will

          7  waive all of that and whoever the Commissioner, and

          8  we have to worry about that because the turnover in

          9  the City of New York, especially Building

         10  Commissioners, I mean, we have gone through five in

         11  the last three years, so now we have to depend on an

         12  individual from the Building Department who is going

         13  to come in and say, you know what this week, let's

         14  have home improvement contractors do boiler

         15  certification.

         16                 I mean, the Building Department sat

         17  here and testified, there are 6,400 high- pressure

         18  boilers in the City, with two boiler inspectors.

         19  They completed one- third of all high pressure

         20  boiler inspection in the City.  I'm sure that the

         21  other two- thirds were taken over - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Did he say two

         23  or did he say nine?

         24                 MR. CORSO:  Yes, no, he is counting

         25  low- pressure too.  There is two high- pressure
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          2  boiler inspectors in the City of New York.

          3                 When you get the figure from the

          4  Building Department there is nine, again, everybody

          5  is lumping low- pressure and high pressure together,

          6  two high- pressure boiler inspectors, one supervisor

          7  and one inspector.  Since they don't have enough

          8  inspectors, the supervisor goes out and also does

          9  inspections. That is two, if two can do one- third

         10  of all high- pressure boiler inspections, we are

         11  here at the City Council, the City of New York,

         12  talking about changing the legislation that

         13  currently only permits people with certificates of

         14  competency, because in order to be a New York City

         15  boiler inspector, high- pressure, you need either a

         16  New York State certificate of competency, or a New

         17  York City Operating Engineer's license in order to

         18  do that.  And we're here talking about, well, let's

         19  change the law because we can't get to all the

         20  boilers.

         21                 Two inspectors did one- third of the

         22  entire City, and the private sector is here, like

         23  peruana, because this is going to open it up, New

         24  York, when this gets revised the City of New York

         25  will not do any high- pressure boiler inspections,
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          2  because you eliminated it, the fee, we heard

          3  somebody testify well, it will be open market, for

          4  what?  In the City of New York, you mean to tell me

          5  that we can sit here, it would take six inspectors

          6  to do enough, all of these high- pressure boilers in

          7  the City?  And we could spend millions of dollars,

          8  ten millions of dollars, twenty- three million

          9  dollars anti- terrorist stuff to prevent bombing,

         10  well this is a high- pressure vessel, it's like a

         11  bomb.

         12                 Housing, inspectors right now

         13  building high- pressure boiler inspectors, the

         14  starting salary is $38,000.  The industry pays

         15  $60,000.  Sure there is no comparison, of course,

         16  you can't hire inspectors, but even within the

         17  current contract, a boiler inspector, within our

         18  current contract, could be brought in without major

         19  difficulty, at $48,400.  Okay, maybe enough to

         20  entice somebody who wants to get started in City

         21  government.  An associate inspector can go up to

         22  $59,000 and change with our current contract, if we

         23  get rid of the minimums.

         24                 But here we are talking about

         25  changing legislation in the City of New York that
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          2  some town with a population of 500 in the mountains

          3  wouldn't accept these people to do their boiler

          4  inspections.  Yet, this Council and the City of New

          5  York and everybody just talks about well, let's do

          6  away it, and we will have, we will open it up to

          7  everybody.  It is a trade, they are professionals,

          8  professionals as far as the work that they do, and

          9  that is why you haven't had accidents, because, yes,

         10  the City inspectors do the small amount they can do,

         11  the one- third, but the insurance companies, their

         12  people are competent.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Do you have

         14  knowledge of any recent accidents?

         15                 MR. CORSO:  No, if the Building

         16  person didn't have it, I didn't.

         17                 Well, because you didn't change the

         18  law yet, ask me this question next year if this goes

         19  through and we will probably have a whole list of

         20  people that died.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well, the

         22  Commissioner just stated that two- thirds don't get

         23  inspected.

         24                 MR. CORSO:  By the Department of

         25  Buildings, but most insurance companies require an
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          2  annual inspection, and they send out their own

          3  inspectors to do it, because they're the only people

          4  that can do it at this period of time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  In addition, so

          6  how many boilers do you believe that are not being

          7  inspected at all?

          8                 MR. CORSO:  Very few.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I want to know

         10  what the number is?

         11                 MR. CORSO:  It's very little.  These

         12  high- pressure boilers, except well, even in the

         13  smaller buildings, a high pressure boiler in order,

         14  if it's legal as far as it being identified as a

         15  high- pressure boiler, in order to get insurance it

         16  has got to get inspected.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So you're

         18  saying it's not --

         19                 MR. CORSO:  Well we're talking 6,000.

         20    I mean, it's not like we're talking multiple

         21  dwellings, we're talking about low pressure 78

         22  thousand low- pressure boilers in the City of New

         23  York. It was never an issue.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It's not

         25  accurate then to conclude that 2,000 that the City
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          2  is doing and the others, therefore, are uninspected.

          3    You say then - -

          4                 MR. CORSO:  I say that that statement

          5   - -  you're right, because he specifically said

          6  that, and the MMR shows where the City of New York

          7  did 2,000 inspections on high- pressure boilers,

          8  that's one- third, a little less.  There are 6,500

          9  boilers, so some 4,500 boilers of that, of great

         10  percentage were done by insurance companies, and if

         11  the Department of Buildings wanted to, since the

         12  insurance companies are supposed to send them a

         13  notice of the inspection, they can give the other

         14  figure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  They're

         16  required to send the notice of inspections to the

         17  Department of Buildings?

         18                 MR. CORSO:  Yes, so they could give

         19  you that number accurately.  But it's just high-

         20  pressure boilers, they're a specialty.  If you talk

         21  to a person in low- pressure, even a low pressure

         22  boiler, they would never attempt to do a high-

         23  pressure boiler inspection.  And here, it just gets

         24  lumped together, and it's a disgrace to the trade,

         25  it's a profession that people spend their lives
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          2  constantly going to school for to be proficient

          3  operating engineers, it's just amazing.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well, the

          5  Commissioner says, boiler technology has improved

          6  significantly over the years, today's high- pressure

          7  boilers are compact, sophisticated pieces of

          8  equipment, not the huge pieces machinery that were

          9  common in earlier century.  Accidents involved in

         10  high- pressure boilers are rare.  You know, so - -

         11                 MR. CORSO:  Well, rare, but we - -

         12  Mr. Chairman, we are looking at a condition where

         13  right now you have a restriction on the people that

         14  can check high- pressure boilers. It is people with

         15  a certificate of competency from the State of New

         16  York, which in itself you need to be a boiler maker

         17  in order to get it, and it's listed, all the boiler-

         18  related issues, or you have to have a New York City

         19  operating engineers license.  Both of them are

         20  tremendous achievements.  It's just deceiving to

         21  think that low pressure, high- pressure, we haven't

         22  had a problem because you have restricted the people

         23  that are doing those inspections up until this date.

         24    You are opening a flood gate for every plumber,

         25  wherever he may be.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  With all due

          3  respect to plumbers, you said.

          4                 MR. CORSO: Oh, naturally I smiled

          5  when I said it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Corso.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Again, I

          9  listened very carefully as I have over the years,

         10  Mr. Corso.  And I think you have been an enlightened

         11  force on the Council.  What is an average

         12  inspection?  First of all, what types of buildings

         13  are served by a low- pressure as opposed to a high-

         14  pressure boiler?

         15                 MR. CORSO:  Well your typical small

         16  and multiple dwellings, even a six- family house

         17  doesn't fall into, a six- story apartment house

         18  doesn't fall typically into high- pressure.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So you're

         20  talking skyscraper.

         21                 MR. CORSO:  Bigger buildings.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So most of

         23  the buildings that you have - -

         24                 MR. CORSO:  Commercial buildings that

         25  use - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: - -  are

          3  commercial buildings.

          4                 MR. CORSO: - -  high amount of

          5  pressure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  They need

          7  the pressure to get the steam into the apartment.

          8                 MR. CORSO:  Yes, even your typical

          9  multiple dwelling- -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Uses low-

         11  pressure.

         12                 MR. CORSO: - -  uses low- pressure.

         13  Six stories, forty units, they're low- pressure

         14  boilers.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  What is the

         16  cost of an inspection on the private, from a private

         17  individual?

         18                 MR. CORSO:  Well we're going to see

         19  what is going to be, right now - -

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  What is it

         21  now?

         22                 MR. CORSO:  I don't know.  Sixty-

         23  five dollars is what it pretty much gets, as far as,

         24  because only the Department of Buildings - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. Perotto
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          2  said seventy bucks from a - -

          3                 MR. CORSO:  Well don't mix it up with

          4  low- pressure.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Well what

          6  does the City charge for inspection?

          7                 MR. CORSO:  Sixty- five dollars.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And do you

          9  know what the private?

         10                 MR. CORSO:  Well the only other

         11  private people that are doing it right now are the

         12  insurance companies.  There are no other private

         13  people doing it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And their

         15  inspecting not only their own insured, other people

         16  as well.

         17                 MR. CORSO:  Well typically whoever

         18  you have the insurance carrier with would do the

         19  inspection, they would get their people out there.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Because he

         21  doesn't want to pay out the huge amounts he would

         22  have to pay out, if God forbid there should be an

         23  accident.

         24                 MR. CORSO:  Well, and that is why I

         25  was sitting there relieved, I was hoping that
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          2  somebody from the insurance industry was here

          3  because I was sure - -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And now you

          5  feel better, right?

          6                 MR. CORSO:  Yes, I do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Now you feel

          8  better.  Is what is going on and do we have

          9  sufficient people in the area, in the private sector

         10  who have the expertise to inspect all of these, who

         11  are presently are licensed to do it, are they

         12  presently in the City of New York who can do this

         13  inspection so that all the boilers are inspected

         14  within a year?

         15                 MR. CORSO:  There is a great pool out

         16  there of people with certificate of competency,

         17  okay?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Most is yes.

         19                 MR. CORSO:  So most of those people

         20  are actually working in buildings now, in order to,

         21  I mean, these operating engineers and people that

         22  hold certificate of competencies are actually the

         23  engineers working on boilers throughout the City of

         24  New York.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So there are
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          2  people out there who can perform all these

          3  inspections without even expanding the number of

          4  people who this bill would expand to allow to do it.

          5                 MR. CORSO:  Yes, and Council Member,

          6  we're talking about four inspectors, to bring on

          7  four inspectors.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Let me ask

          9  the questions here, you're answering questions that

         10  I'm not asking.

         11                 MR. CORSO:  I'm sorry.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The answer

         13  is yes, you have them in the private sector, and

         14  what was the number of boiler inspectors we had at

         15  one time working for the City, high- pressure boiler

         16  inspections?

         17                 MR. CORSO:  High- pressure - -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The highest

         19  number?

         20                 MR. CORSO:  The highest number I

         21  remember as far as high- pressure was concerned was

         22  we had nine.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And how many

         24  do we have now?

         25                 MR. CORSO:  Two.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Two.  And is

          3  there any indication that - -  withdrawn, withdrawn.

          4    I was just wondering whether or not if your

          5  supposition that the motivation for this legislation

          6  is to privatize this industry?

          7                 MR. CORSO:  Well let's put it a

          8  proper perspective, okay, especially in a situation

          9  where we're talking about high pressure boilers,

         10  okay?  I'm here not to get four new members, that is

         11  not going to make us or break us, or lose the other

         12  two, it is not going to make us or break us.  But

         13  what is at risk here and what you are opening the

         14  door for, all we need to do is bring on an

         15  additional - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  What is at

         17  risk, the safety of the people of the City of New

         18  York?

         19                 MR. CORSO:  Of course, we will have

         20  nobody - -

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You didn't

         22  finish your sentence.

         23                 MR. CORSO: - -  we will have nobody

         24  to monitor, you know we talk about spot checking,

         25  well, okay, these guys are all going to do it,
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          2  they're all going to run around, all these licensed

          3  plumbers, oil burner people, we're not going to have

          4  qualified people out there to spot check that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So what do

          6  we have a certification situation?

          7                 MR. CORSO:  You have a certification

          8  with nobody going out there checking it.  All we

          9  really need is for the Council to put, and again,

         10  this isn't about getting all the additional monies

         11  added in, right now the range for a high- pressure

         12  boiler inspector starts at 38,128 - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  City

         14  employee.

         15                 MR. CORSO: - -  City employee, and

         16  goes up to 48,400, okay?  And an associate goes up

         17  to 59,400.  The Building Department would they only

         18  bring those people in at the top of the grade rather

         19  than the entry level, you would have high- pressure

         20  at the entry level, you would have high- pressure

         21  boiler inspectors, four people.  The City can spend

         22  billions on parks outside on ground and ground, and

         23  yet high- pressure boilers, oh, let's just turn it

         24  over to the private sector, the City won't have any

         25  involvement, and the only time my people are going
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          2  to go there is after an accident and after an

          3  explosion, but it won't be a boiler inspector, then

          4  we will have a construction or demolition inspector

          5  going out there to see, to pick up the pieces.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes.

          7                 MR. CORSO:  It's just ridiculous.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Have you

          9  heard whether or not one of the options would be for

         10  the City to enter into contracts with certain

         11  qualified boiler inspectors to do the job on behalf

         12  of the City?

         13                 MR. CORSO:  No, I haven't heard that.

         14    I heard it here, this is the first time I'm

         15  hearing it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  That

         17  argument has never been, - -

         18                 MR. CORSO:  But there was no need - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: - -  in other

         20  words, to be holders of contracts of the City of New

         21  York.

         22                 MR. CORSO:  Well we have technically,

         23  I mean, we have the situation now - -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You need

         25  them year around, you're saying you need year
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          2  around, these inspectors?

          3                 MR. CORSO:  Of course, you do.  Right

          4  now- -

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You are

          6  arguing for more inspectors, of City inspectors, as

          7  well?

          8                 MR. CORSO:  Well four would handle

          9  the whole whatever the Commissioner was talking

         10  about, that the City could not do.  But in reality

         11  if the City is doing one- third of them now and the

         12  insurance company is doing the two- thirds, what I

         13  ask you to do is just find out how many are actually

         14  being done by the insurance companies now, so that

         15  when somebody says that boilers aren't being

         16  inspected for every three years, well, is that a

         17  fact? I don't believe it is, I believe that the

         18  insurance company pick up the slack now with their

         19  qualified people and that is where my concern is.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  My

         21  understanding is that we're not voting on this

         22  legislation today.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well we're not

         24  voting on it today.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But I would
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          2  think, I would hope before the next hearing, we may

          3  be scheduled for the vote, let me get this

          4  information from insurance companies to submit it to

          5  us, to give us those numbers.

          6                 MR. CORSO:  Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  There are

          8  people from the industry today, and any help you can

          9  be, I would appreciate it, for my own conscience.

         10                 MR. CORSO:  I will do what I can.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  What I

         12  understand, Mr. Corso, to be saying is that you want

         13  your members, I mean, if a guy is qualified, you

         14  still don't want the City to give up this

         15  responsibility, you do not want the City giving up

         16  this authority to do it.

         17                 MR. CORSO:  No, that is not true.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I mean, even

         19  though you said, I don't know, maybe I heard you

         20  wrong, because you say the plumber, with all due

         21  respect, the plumbers, but if a plumber is qualified

         22  to do it, if he has the same qualifications as an

         23  operating engineer or a boiler maker, whatever it

         24  required to inspect, then that's, maybe we can

         25  determine some level of competency to be
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          2  established.

          3                 But if you're saying, what you're

          4  saying, Sir, if I'm listening to you correctly,

          5  there is no need to do this, you're saying that the

          6  insurance company takes up the slack between the

          7  4,000, your two guys do the other six thousand, and

          8  we should do status quo.

          9                 MR. CORSO:  It's only 6,000 total.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  You're saying

         11  we should maintain status quo, is what you're

         12  saying.

         13                 MR. CORSO: Well, I will expand that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  But you're

         15  saying it should stay status quo.

         16                 MR. CORSO:  No, I will expand it,

         17  okay?  Status quo or whomever is going to check a

         18  high- pressure boiler needs to be qualified by the

         19  New York State, needs to obtain a New York State

         20  certificate of competency.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  That is a

         22  positive suggestion, we will take that - -

         23                 MR. CORSO:  Where he qualifies for

         24  it, not under a waiver, not under a this, not under

         25  a that, he qualifies for a New York State
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          2  certificate of competency.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Before we vote

          4  this Committee will review what those requirements

          5  are as compared to what a licensed plumber is

          6  required to know and see how they stack up as it

          7  relates them to qualify.

          8                 Thank you very much, Mr. Corso.

          9                 MR. CORSO:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. Agusta.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Just one

         12  question, one quick one too.  You said it would take

         13  years to be able to be qualified to inspect a high-

         14  pressure boiler, if you have only been doing low

         15  pressure boilers?

         16                 MR. CORSO:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Years?  You

         18  need to have five years as a boiler maker in order

         19  to even take the exam for this New York State

         20  certificate of competency, two years would you think

         21  it would be, in your opinion?

         22                 MR. CORSO:  No, I believe it would be

         23  more like five.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  In more,

         25  okay, thank you, Mr. Corso.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. Philip

          3  Agusta, Professional Design Center of New York,

          4  Queens Chapter Architects, okay, and a good friend.

          5                 MR. AGUSTA:  Mr. Chairman and ladies

          6  and gentlemen of City Council, I have a very short

          7  statement.  I concur with the last speaker.  I feel

          8  that some plumbers, although they may qualify as

          9  master plumbers, have certain qualifications for

         10  fixing plumbing or installing plumbing, but to check

         11  on boilers is another question.  Installers of

         12  boiler equipment doesn't make one an expert on how a

         13  boiler operates and what the safety features are.

         14                 People who design boilers and who are

         15  qualified to design boilers under the New York State

         16  Board of Education, such as engineers and

         17  architects, are left out of the inspection field.

         18  I'm not speaking for myself, I'm speaking for some

         19  individuals who design these boilers and see that

         20  they're installed properly, I think that architects

         21  and engineers who can qualify under the State Law to

         22  design and to see that it is installed properly

         23  should be qualified to inspect.  And I'm not talking

         24  about only high- pressure boilers, I'm  talking

         25  about all low- pressure and high- pressure, and that
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          2  would relieve the City of certain problems that they

          3  may have.

          4                 I left a written statement for the

          5  Committee to consider, I think it is illogical to

          6  omit those that design this equipment from

          7  inspecting it.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you, Mr.

         10  Agusta, you can be assured that as we proceed with

         11  this matter that your concerns, that the concerns

         12  that you raised will be given every consideration.

         13                 MR. AGUSTA:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Of the last

         15  speaker of today's- -  Council Member Michels.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, Mr.

         17  Agusta, we're so honored to have you here, and we

         18  don't want you to leave so soon.

         19                 MR. AGUSTA:  I'm honored to be here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, your

         21  first statement was that you agreed that you agreed

         22  with the previous speaker.

         23                 MR. AGUSTA:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Could you be

         25  a little more specific as to what you agreed to?
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          2                 MR. AGUSTA:  Well, I think operators

          3  of high pressure boilers should be qualified by

          4  examination.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And do you

          6  believe like he believes that it takes them five

          7  years before a person could really reach those

          8  qualifications, even if they take the exam?

          9                 MR. AGUSTA:  I'm not too sure about

         10  that.  I know it takes a number of years for an

         11  engineer and an architect to get their license.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You're

         13  saying what you would like is to amend 549 to

         14  include architects and professional engineers to be

         15  able to inspect these boilers.  Would they have also

         16  to take this exam before they could be allowed to do

         17  the inspection?

         18                 MR. AGUSTA:  I think those that

         19  design this equipment can take the exam and

         20  certainly be a qualified inspector, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, but

         22  should they be made to take the exam before they

         23  would be a qualified inspector?

         24                 MR. AGUSTA:  Well they could, yes,

         25  they could be made to take that exam.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  You wouldn't

          3  have any objection, and say, okay, on the surface

          4  you have these qualifications, but however, we want

          5  you to take this examination that is required to

          6  make sure you actually possess what the knowledge

          7  is, and maybe then forget it.

          8                 MR. AGUSTA:  Absolutely, there would

          9  be no problem with that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And do you

         11  think that this legislation is expanding to be

         12  allowing to do this inspection to a dangerous level?

         13                 MR. AGUSTA:  It might, it might very

         14  well be, and I think that we're opening up a

         15  pandora's box here.  And as I recall maybe for the

         16  last 10 years we have had this one incident, but I

         17  have a recollection of 20, 30 years ago where a

         18  boiler went right through a concrete arch in a

         19  building and there were fatalities.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Yes, and

         21  that experience has, I guess, lingered in your own

         22  mind as a potentiality of the dangers of this

         23  instrumentality?

         24                 MR. AGUSTA:  Yes, as a matter of

         25  fact, that's why we got the law about boiler
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          2  inspections, as I recall.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And how long

          4  ago is that?

          5                 MR. AGUSTA:  It might have been

          6  around 30 years ago, 25, 30 years ago.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Thirty years

          8  ago.  And so are you of the opinion that if it's not

          9  broke, don't fix it?

         10                 MR. AGUSTA:  No, I think preventive

         11  legislation is possible here.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But you look

         13  upon this as expansive legislation, there is a lot

         14  of people to inspect, they're not allowed to inspect

         15  now.

         16                 MR. AGUSTA:  Yes, I do, and I think

         17  these people should be qualified to inspect, but

         18  they should not be left out, if they are also

         19  qualified to design.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  I see.  So

         21  would you go along with putting anybody who wants to

         22  do this inspection, to be able to do this

         23  inspection, provided that they pass the necessary

         24  exams that are tested, that has been tested by the

         25  National Board?
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          2                 MR. AGUSTA:  Yes, besides being a

          3  licensed installer and master plumber - -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  The National

          5  Board of Boiler and Vessel Inspectors who presently

          6  administer the exam.

          7                 MR. AGUSTA:  I think so, I think it

          8  would be wise for the City to take that type of

          9  tactic.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So we just

         11  shouldn't let licensed plumbers do it without having

         12  passing this exam first?

         13                 MR. AGUSTA:  Exactly, yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. AGUSTA:  Or the installers, or

         16  even architects or engineers.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Well, yes,

         18  that I is what I thought, licensed plumbers or

         19  installers.  Anybody who wants to do this inspection

         20  must first pass this type of examination.

         21                 MR. AGUSTA:  Exactly.  And as far as

         22  the question of the insurance people, all right,

         23  they have a monetary interest in these boilers.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  But even

         25  them, the people they hire to do this inspection
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          2  should pass this exam.

          3                 MR. AGUSTA:  I think so, yes.  I

          4  think it would be really foolish of them to hire

          5  people that are not qualified.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And the same

          7  thing for the City, the City inspections should also

          8  have to pass this type of exam.

          9                 MR. AGUSTA:  I think so, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  All right.

         11  Okay, thank you very much, we really appreciate your

         12  testimony.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you, Mr.

         14  Agusta.  It is always a pleasure to have you with

         15  us.   The last person to testify today, James

         16  Carberry, CNA Boiler Machinery.

         17                 MR. CARBERRY:  My name is Jim

         18  Carberry.  I'm with CNA Commercial Insurance, the

         19  Boiler Machinery Division, and I just have a brief

         20  statement on our position on 549.

         21                 We have utilized contractors on low-

         22  pressure boilers and we see no evidence that this

         23  has jeopardized the public's safety.  Realizing that

         24  high- pressure boilers are a different animal than

         25  low- pressure boilers, we feel that we concur with
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          2  Local Law 549 for two reasons:

          3                 A)  We have financial interests so we

          4  would be very careful about how we go about

          5  selecting who we would contract out this work to.

          6                 B)  We have the expertise having

          7  National Board Commissions, knowing the National

          8  Board Code and ASME 1.  We have the expertise to

          9  assess if the subcontracting firm that we hire out

         10  can perform these inspections adequately.

         11                 We feel some sort of definition has

         12  to be outlined as to what a qualified inspector is,

         13  if we are going to go forward with the contracting

         14  out of third party inspections.

         15                 And my second point is in regards to

         16  the flew, we don't normally inspect the flew, we

         17  don't feel that should be included in the law, it's

         18  not insured under the boiler machinery policy, it's

         19  not covered in ASME 1 or the National Board Code, so

         20  we don't feel that this should be included in the

         21  law.

         22                 And that is my statement.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you, Mr.

         24  Carberry. Stanley.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  As far as
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          2  your concerned being an insurance company, the only

          3  people that you hire are people who have passed the

          4  National Board.

          5                 MR. CARBERRY:  That is our policy.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And even

          7  when you subcontract out, are you aware that this

          8  legislation does not require that?

          9                 MR. CARBERRY:  Right, well in our

         10  communications with - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  As far as

         12  your concerned you're handling it right.

         13                 MR. CARBERRY:  Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Would you

         15  feel comfortable sitting back here with us and

         16  saying, okay, we're not even going to allow people

         17  like yourself who require National Board

         18  certification, but we will allow other people to do

         19  this, and you're satisfied with that?

         20                 MR. CARBERRY:  I think if you qualify

         21  what a qualified inspector is.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  We don't

         23  have such a definition in here.

         24                 MR. CARBERRY:  Well I think that

         25  needs to be addressed, and also, I think we have the
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          2  expertise to determine whether they, there may be an

          3  organization or an individual that has this

          4  Commission that isn't qualified.  I have seen

          5  operators who, you know, have their high- pressure

          6  operator license who don't really know a lot about

          7  boilers.  We assess the organization that we work

          8  with, we ask them questions, we go through a check

          9  list, we ask what they look for when they do an

         10  inspection.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And that is

         12  as far as you're concerned.  But we're looking at

         13  legislation, which allows just about anybody if

         14  they're a plumber or a installer, even if they

         15  haven't passed this examination, to do this

         16  inspection.  And do you think that is proper?

         17                 MR. CARBERRY:  No, as I said I think

         18   - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  So you

         20  wouldn't be supporting legislation that said that,

         21  would you?

         22                 MR. CARBERRY:  Well, you would have

         23  to address what a qualified inspection firm is.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  And this

         25  legislation doesn't do that, then you wouldn't
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          2  support it, right?

          3                 MR. CARBERRY:  No, if the legislation

          4  doesn't do that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  Well I

          6  suggest perhaps you should read the legislation and

          7  then tell us what you think.  I mean, I'm sure that

          8  as far as you're concern, your company is concerned

          9  the people you hire are qualified.  We're concerned

         10  with people who are hired by other people who are

         11  not necessarily from insurance companies, who maybe

         12  have not taken this exam, have not kept this

         13  qualification.

         14                 MR. CARBERRY:  Well some, a

         15  qualification has to be in place for determining if

         16  they are.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS:  That's

         18  right, okay, okay, thank you very much, appreciate

         19  your testimony.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Just a moment,

         21  Sir, just a moment, another question.  All of the,

         22  you insure boilers?

         23                 MR. CARBERRY:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And all of the

         25  boilers that you insure, you inspect annually.
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          2                 MR. CARBERRY:  Yes, in New York.

          3  There is New York State low- pressure is every two

          4  years, and there are some different laws in

          5  different states.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, are you

          7  familiar with the industry as a whole?

          8                 MR. CARBERRY:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. Corso

         10  stated that the difference between what you insure,

         11  I mean what you inspect as a part of your insurance

         12  obligations or being prudent, and what the City

         13  insures leaves a very few, if any, not being

         14  inspected.  Do you feel that there are boilers out

         15  there not being inspected to any large number?

         16                 MR. CARBERRY:  There probably are

         17  some boilers that aren't insured, that where the

         18  building does not have an insurance policy, and the

         19  City does not know that the building has a boiler,

         20  so that is where the boilers fall through the

         21  cracks.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right,

         23  wouldn't it just be a prudent business practice just

         24  to insure the boiler?

         25                 MR. CARBERRY:  That is up to the
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          2  building owner to come to us, we can't, you know, -

          3   -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Is the

          5  insurance prohibitively expensive?

          6                 MR. CARBERRY:  No, our minimum policy

          7  is $500 and that applies to most smaller,

          8  residential and smaller commercial type buildings.

          9  And that includes the policy and the inspection.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I just want to

         11  get back to that gap that is not insured.  Do you

         12  think that is a large number or a small number, or

         13  what?

         14                 MR. CARBERRY:  I would say a smaller

         15  number.  I would say most building owners are aware

         16  of their responsibilities, but a small percentage

         17  aren't.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It would just

         19  be purely, almost recklessly irresponsible not to

         20  have that kind of insurance. I know that there are

         21  some insurance, that the bank will not give you

         22  mortgage or financing unless you have certain

         23  insurance, fire insurance, for example.

         24                 MR. CARBERRY:  Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Does the
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          2  insurance on the boiler come in that category, does

          3  anyone know that answer?

          4                 The insurance to the boiler is not

          5  required for financing, but it is a smart business

          6  practice though, right? Okay.

          7                 Okay, Sir, thank you very much for

          8  your testimony. And there being no other witnesses

          9  at today's hearing, this meeting is adjourned.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 2:45 p.m.)
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